
 

1 

 
 
REVIEWS SUB-COMMITTEE - EPPING FOREST 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
Thursday, 2nd October, 2008 
 
Place: Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Room: Committee Room 2 
  
Time: 10.00 am 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer 

G Lunnun, Office of the Chief Executive 
Tel: 01992 564244 Email: glunnun@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Ms M Marshall, Councillor B Rolfe and G Weltch 
 
 
 
 
 

 1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on the agenda. 
 

 2. ASSESSMENT CRITERIA AND THE CODE OF CONDUCT  (Pages 5 - 14) 
 

  The Sub-Committee are asked to note the attached Assessment criteria agreed by the 
Standards Committee at their meeting on 2 July 2008. 
 
Also attached for members reference is the Code of Conduct for Members which was 
adopted by the Council at its meeting on 28 June 2008. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

 Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government      
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A 
of the Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 

 
Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 

Paragraph Number 
4 Local Assessment Case 

EFDC 2/2008 
1 

 



Reviews Sub-Committee – Epping Forest Standards Committee                2 October 2008 

2 

   
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Furthermore, where a meeting of a Standards Committee or a Sub-Committee of a 
Standards Committee is convened to consider a matter referred under the provisions 
of Section 64(2) or 71(2) of the Local Government Act the provisions of Schedule 12A 
of the 1972 Act shall apply with the addition of the following descriptions of exempt 
information: 
 

(a) information which is subject to any obligation of confidentiality; 
(b) information which relates in any way to matters concerning national security; 
(c) the deliberations of a standards committee or of a sub-committee of a 

standards committee established under the provisions of Part 3 of the Local 
Government Act 2000 in reaching any finding on a matter referred under the 
provisions of section 60(2) or (3), 64(2), 70(4) or (5) or 71(2) of that Act. 

 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 

(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not  
(c)  
(d)  
(e) include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 

information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 



Reviews Sub-Committee – Epping Forest Standards Committee                2 October 2008 

3 

 
 
 

4. LOCAL ASSESSMENT CASE EFDC 2/2008 - REVIEW  (Pages 15 - 48) 
 

  To consider the attached restricted report. 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 

Epping Forest District – Standards Committee 

Local Assessment of Complaints – Criteria 

The Standards Committee will not investigate complaints that are: 

• Malicious, relatively minor, politically motivated, trivial or tit for tat.  

• Made anonymously. 

• Contain no prima facie evidence of a breach of the Code. 

• Where the complainant has not supplied enough information to justify a decision 
to refer the matter for investigation or to evidence their complaint or have 
supplied information of too general a nature from which to make a judgement to 
investigate. 

• Where an investigation would serve no useful purpose or is not serious enough 
to warrant a sanction or where only an apology was appropriate. 

• The same, or substantially similar, complaint has already been the subject of an 
investigation or inquiry and there is nothing further to be gained by seeking the 
sanctions available to the Subcommittee or the local Standards Committees and 
where no new relevant evidence has been submitted. 

• Acts carried out in the Member’s private life, when they are not carrying out the 
work of the authority or have not misused their position as a Member.  

• About dissatisfaction with a council decision, about the way the Council conducts 
or records its meetings, the way the Council has or has not done something.  

• Within the Council’s complaints process. 

• About someone who is no longer a member of either the District Council or a 
Town or Parish Council within the area, or is a member of another authority. 

• More then 1 year has passed since the alleged conduct occurred. 

• Not suitable for local investigation (see referral criteria below). 

• Where alternative action such as training, mediation would be more appropriate. 

The Standards Committee may refer the following cases to the Standards Board for 
England: 

• Where the status of the member(s) being complained of would make it difficult to 
deal locally with the complaint. For example: Complaints concerning the Leader 
of the Council, Cabinet member or leading opposition members, Chairman or 
Standards Committee members.   

• Complaints from the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer or Service Director. 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



• Instances where a large number of key people are conflicted out or where the 
authority itself might be perceived to have an interest in the outcome of the case. 

• Instances where there has been national attention, or where the Standards 
Committee feels that the matter turns on an important point of interpretation of 
the Code (a test case). 

• Where there are other public issue considerations, exceptional circumstances or 
allegations of governance dysfunction that would make it difficult for the authority 
to deal with the case fairly or speedily. 

• Where the Assessment Sub-committee, having undertaken their initial 
assessment, believes that the matter should be dealt with at Standards Board 
level. 

 

Page 6



G:\C\LUNNUN\J2007\THE MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT.doc 

                                                                                                                              APPENDIX 2 
 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL             
 

THE MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
 
 

Part 1 
 

General provisions 
 

 
 
1. Introduction and interpretation 
 
 (1) This Code applies to you as a member of an authority. 
 

(2) You should read this Code together with the general principles prescribed by 
the Secretary of State. 
 
(3) It is your responsibility to comply with the provisions of this Code. 
 
(4) In this Code - 
 
 "meeting" means any meeting of: 
 
 (a) the authority; 
 
 (b) the executive of the authority; 
 

(c) any of the authority's or its executive's committees, sub-committees, 
joint committees, joint sub-committees, or area committees; 

 
"member" includes a co-opted member and an appointed member. 
 

(5) In relation to a parish council, references to an authority's Monitoring Officer 
and an authority's Standards Committee shall be read, respectively, as references to 
the Monitoring Officer and the Standards Committee of the district council or unitary 
county council which has functions in relation to the parish council for which it is 
responsible under Section 55(12) of the Local Government Act 2000. 
 

2. Scope 
 
 (1) Subject to sub-paragraphs (2) to (5), you must comply with this Code 

whenever you: 
 

(a) conduct the business of your authority (which, in this Code, includes the 
business of the office to which you are elected or appointed);  or 

 
(b) act, claim to act or give the impression you are acting as a representative of 

your authority, 
 
and references to your official capacity are construed accordingly. 
 

Page 7



G:\C\LUNNUN\J2007\THE MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT.doc 

(2) Subject to sub-paragraphs (3) and (4), this Code does not have effect in 
relation to your conduct other than where it is in your official capacity. 
 
(3) In addition to having effect in relation to conduct in your official capacity, 
paragraphs 3(2)(c), 5 and 6(a) also have effect, at any other time, where that 
conduct constitutes a criminal offence for which you have been convicted. 
 
(4) Conduct to which this Code applies (whether that is conduct in your official 
capacity or conduct mentioned in sub-paragraph (3)) includes a criminal offence for 
which you are convicted (including an offence you committed before the date you 
took office, but for which you are convicted after that date). 
 
(5) Where you act as a representative of your authority: 
 
(a) on another relevant authority, you must, when acting for that other authority, 

comply with that other authority's Code of Conduct;  or 
 
(b) on any other body, you must, when acting for that other body, comply with 

your authority's Code of Conduct, except and insofar as it conflicts with any 
other lawful obligations to which that other body may be subject. 

 
3. General obligations 

 
 (1) You must treat others with respect. 
 
 (2) You must not: 
 

(a) do anything which may cause your authority to breach any of the equality 
enactments (as defined in Section 33 of the Equality Act 2006); 

 
 (b) bully any person; 
 
 (c) intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is or is likely to be: 
 
  (i) a complainant, 
 
  (ii) a witness, or 
 
 (iii) involved in the administration of any investigation or proceedings, 
 
 in relation to an allegation that a member (including yourself) has failed to 

comply with his or her authority's Code of Conduct;  or 
 

(d) do anything which comprises or is likely to compromise the impartiality of 
those who work for, or on behalf of, your authority. 

 
(3) In relation to police authorities and the Metropolitan Police Authority, for the 
purposes of sub-paragraph (2)(d) those who work for, or on behalf of, an authority 
are deemed to include a police officer. 
 

4. You must not: 
 

(a) disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone, or information 
acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably to be aware, is of a 
confidential nature, except where: 

Page 8



G:\C\LUNNUN\J2007\THE MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT.doc 

 
  (i) you have the consent of a person authorised to give it; 

 
(ii) you are required by law to do so; 
 
(iii) the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of obtaining 

professional advice provided that the third party agrees not to disclose 
the information to any other person;  or 

 
(iv) the disclosure is: 
 
 (aa) reasonable and in the public interest;  and 
 
 (bb) made in good faith and in compliance with the reasonable 

requirements of the authority;  or 
 

(b) prevent another person from gaining access to information to which that 
person is entitled by law. 

 
5. You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as 

bringing your office or authority into disrepute. 
 
6. You: 
 

(a) must not use or attempt to use your position as a member improperly to 
confer on or secure for yourself or any other person, an advantage or 
disadvantage;  and 

 
(b) must, when using or authorising the use by others of the resources of your 

authority: 
 

  (i) act in accordance with your authority's reasonable requirements; 
 
  (ii) ensure that such resources are not used improperly for political 

purposes (including party political purposes);  and 
 

(c) must have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of Publicity made 
under the Local Government Act 1986. 

 
7. (1) When reaching decisions on any matter you must have regard to any relevant 

advice provided to you by: 
 
  (a) your authority's Chief Finance Officer;  or 
 
  (b) your authority's Monitoring Officer, 
 
  where that officer is acting pursuant to his or her statutory duties. 
 

(2) You must give reasons for all decisions in accordance with any statutory 
requirements and any reasonable additional requirements imposed by your 
authority. 

Page 9



G:\C\LUNNUN\J2007\THE MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT.doc 

 
Part 2 

 
Interests 

 
 
8. Personal interests 
 
 (1) You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where either: 
 
  (a) it relates to or is likely to affect: 
 
  (i) any body of which you are a member or in a position of general 

control or management and to which you are appointed or nominated 
by your authority; 

 
  (ii) any body: 
 
   (aa) exercising functions of a public nature; 
 
   (bb) directed to charitable purposes;  or 
 
  (cc) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence 

of public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade 
union); 

 
  of which you are member or in a position of general control or 

management; 
 
  (iii) any employment or business carried on by you; 
 
  (iv) any person or body who employs or has appointed you; 
 
  (v) any person or body, other than a relevant authority, who has 

made a payment to you in respect of your election or any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties; 

 
  (vi) any person or body who has a place of business or land in 

your authority's area, and in whom you have a beneficial 
interest in a class of securities of that person or body that 
exceeds the nominal value of £25,000 or one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital (whichever is the lower); 

 
  (vii) any contract for goods, services or works made between your 

authority and you or a firm in which you are a partner, a 
company of which you are a remunerated director, or a person 
or body of the description specified in paragraph (vi); 

 
  (viii) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift 

or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25; 
 
  (ix) any land in your authority's area in which you have a beneficial 

interest; 
 

Page 10



G:\C\LUNNUN\J2007\THE MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT.doc 

  (x) any land where the landlord is your authority and you are, or a 
firm in which you are a partner, a company of which you are a 
remunerated director, or a person or body of the description 
specified in paragraph (vi) is, the tenant; 

 
  (xi) any land in the authority's area for which you have a licence 

(alone or jointly with others) to occupy for 28 days or longer;  
or 

 
  (b) a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded 

as affecting your well-being or financial position or the well-being or 
financial position of a relevant person to a greater extent than the 
majority of: 

 
   (i) (in the case of authorities with electoral divisions or wards) 

other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the 
electoral division or ward, as the case may be, affected by the 
decision; 

 
   (ii) (in the case of the Greater London Authority) other council tax 

payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the Assembly constituency 
affected by the decision;  or 

 
   (iii) (in all other cases) other council tax payers, ratepayers or 

inhabitants of your authority's area. 
 

 (2) In sub-paragraph (1)(b), a relevant person is: 
 
  (a) a member of your family or any person with whom you have a close 

association;  or 
 
  (b) any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any 

firm in which they are a partner, or any company of which they are 
directors; 

 
  (c) any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in 

a class of securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;  or 
 
  (d) any body of a type described in sub-paragraph (1)(a)(i) or (ii). 
 
9. Disclosure of personal interests 
 
 (1) Subject to sub-paragraphs (2) to (7), where you have a personal interest in 

any business of your authority and you attend a meeting of your authority at which 
the business is considered, you must disclose to that meeting the existence and 
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the 
interest becomes apparent. 

 
 (2) Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority which 

relates to or is likely to affect a person described in paragraph 8(1)(a)(i) or 
8(1)(a)(ii)(aa), you need only disclose to the meeting the existence and nature of that 
interest when you address the meeting on that business. 

 

Page 11



G:\C\LUNNUN\J2007\THE MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT.doc 

 (3) Where you have a personal interest in any business of the authority of the 
type mentioned in paragraph 8(1)(a)(viii), you need not disclose the nature or 
existence of that interest to the meeting if the interest was registered more than 
three years before the date of the meeting. 

 
 (4) Sub-paragraph (1) only applies where you are aware or ought reasonably to 

be aware of the existence of the personal interest. 
 
 (5) Where you have a personal interest but, by virtue of paragraph 14, sensitive 

information relating to it is not registered in your authority's register of members' 
interests, you must indicate to the meeting that you have a personal interest, but 
need not disclose the sensitive information to the meeting. 

 
 (6) Subject to paragraph 12(1)(b), where you have a personal interest in any 

business of your authority and you have made an executive decision in relation to 
that business, you must ensure that any written statement of that decision records 
the existence and nature of that interest. 

 
 (7) In this paragraph, "executive decision" is to be construed in accordance with 

any regulations made by the Secretary of State under Section 22 of the Local 
Government Act 2000. 

 
10. Prejudicial interest generally 
 
 (1) Subject to sub-paragraph (2), where you have a personal interest in any 

business of your authority you also have a prejudicial interest in that business where 
the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts 
would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement 
of the public interest. 

 
 (2) You do not have a prejudicial interest in any business of the authority where 

that business: 
 
 (a) does not affect your financial position or the financial position of a person or 

body described in paragraph 8; 
 

(b) does not relate to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, 
permission or registration in relation to you or any person or body described in 
paragraph 8;  or 

 
 (c) relates to the functions of your authority in respect of: 
 
  (i) housing, where you are a tenant of your authority provided that those 

functions do not relate particularly to your tenancy or lease; 
 
  (ii) school meals or school transport and travelling expenses, where you 

are a parent or guardian of a child in full time education, or are a parent 
governor of a school, unless it relates particularly to the school which the child 
attends; 

 
  (iii) statutory sick pay under Part XI of the Social Security Contributions 

and Benefits Act 1992, where you are in receipt of, or are entitled to the 
receipt of, such pay; 

 
  (iv) an allowance, payment or indemnity given to members; 

Page 12



G:\C\LUNNUN\J2007\THE MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT.doc 

 
  (v) any ceremonial honour given to members;  and 
 
  (vi) setting council tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance 

Act 1992. 
 
11. Prejudicial interests arising in relation to Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
 
 You also have a prejudicial interest in any business before an Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee of your authority (or of a sub-committee of such a committee) where: 
 
 (a) that business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or not) or 

action taken by your authority's executive or another of your authority's 
committees, sub-committees, joint committees or joint sub-committees;  and 

 
 (b) at the time the decision was made or action was taken, you were a member 

of the executive, committee, sub-committee, joint committee or joint 
sub-committee mentioned in paragraph (a) and you were present when that 
decision was made or action was taken. 

 
12. Effect of prejudicial interests on participation 
 
 (1) Subject to sub-paragraph (2), where you have a prejudicial interest in any 

business of your authority: 
 
 (a) you must withdraw from the room or chamber where a meeting considering 

the business is being held: 
 
  (i) in a case where sub-paragraph (2) applies, immediately after making 

representations, answering questions or giving evidence; 
 
  (ii) in any other case, whenever it becomes apparent that the business is 

being considered at that meeting; 
 
  unless you have obtained a dispensation from your authority's Standards 

Committee; 
 
 (b) you must not exercise executive functions in relation to that business;  and 
 
 (c) you must not seek improperly to influence a decision about that business. 
 
 (2) Where you have a prejudicial interest in any business of your authority, you 

may attend a meeting (including a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
of your authority or of a sub-committee of such a committee) but only for the purpose 
of making representations, answering questions or giving evidence relating to the 
business, provided that the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for the 
same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise. 

 

Page 13



G:\C\LUNNUN\J2007\THE MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT.doc 

Part 3 
 

Registration of Members' Interests 
 

13. Registration of members' interests 
 
 (1) Subject to paragraph 14, you must, within 28 days of: 
 
  (a) this Code being adopted by or applied to your authority;  or 
 
  (b) your election or appointment to office (where that is later), 
 
  register in your authority's register of members' interests (maintained under 

Section 81(1) of the Local Government Act 2000) details of your personal 
interests where they fall within a category mentioned in paragraph 8(1)(a), 
by providing written notification to your authority's Monitoring Officer. 

 
 (2) Subject to paragraph 14, you must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any 

new personal interest or change to any personal interest registered under 
paragraph (1), register details of that new personal interest or change by providing 
written notification to your authority's Monitoring Officer. 

 
14. Sensitive information 
 
 (1) Where you consider that the information relating to any of your personal 

interests is sensitive information, and your authority's Monitoring Officer agrees, you 
need not include that information when registering that interest, or, as the case may 
be, a change to that interest under paragraph 13. 

 
 (2) You must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any change of circumstances 

which means that information excluded under paragraph (1) is no longer sensitive 
information, notify your authority's Monitoring Officer asking that the information be 
included in your authority's register of members' interests. 

 
 (3) In this Code, "sensitive information" means information whose availability for 

inspection by the public creates, or is likely to create, a serious risk that you or a 
person who lives with you may be subjected to violence or intimidation. 

 
 

Page 14



Agenda Item 4

Page 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 17

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 45

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Assessment Criteria and the Code of Conduct
	TheModelCodeofConduct, 15/07/2008 Assessment Subcommittee - Epping Forest District Standards Committee

	4 Local Assessment Case EFDC 2/2008 - Review
	Local Assessment form - EFDC 2-2008 final
	Decision Notice - EFDC 2-2008
	letters -  21-24 July 2008


